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BELDEN BRICK IS....

VERSATILITY

Whether you're asked to free your creative
imagination on a church, office building, school,
apartment, factory or home, BELDEN will help with the
largest selection of brick in the industry.

The versatility of BELDEN is unlimited because of over
200 variations in color, texture and size of brick.

Your nearest BELDEN Dealer will gladly show you
the facts in the form of samples and our new

4 color brochure, or write us at

P. 0. Box 910, Canton, Qhio 44701.




GAS LIGHT

It runs on electricity produced by a natural gas
Total Energy System.

A natural gas Total Energy System is the method
of power production based upon on-site genera-
tion with gas as the fuel, using gas engine-driven
generators to produce low cost electricity.

The economy of natural gas Total Energy Sys-
tems is remarkable. In a central electrical power
plant, more than 60 percent of the fuel’'s potential
energy is wasted. But when power is generated at
the plant or building site with a Total Energy Sys-

tem, the energy not converted to electricity is
captured to meet the plant’s or building’s needs
for heat, hot water and steam for absorption cooling.

This highly efficient method of energy produc-
tion has already been used to supply power for
industrial plants, shopping centers, apartment
houses, hospitals, hotels and motels,

If you're designing something that calls for big
power economy and efficiency, recommend a nat-
ural gas Total Energy System. It makes things
work better.

Gas Utility Companies Serving Central Indiana

Central Indiana Gas Company
Indiana Gas Company, Inc.
Richmond Gas Corporation

Citizens Gas & Coke Utility
Kokomo Gas and Fuel Co.
Terre Haute Gas Corporation




b

OUR RESPONSIBILITY
TO THE PEOPLE WE SERVE

MECHANICAL CONYIACYSS PROGRESS (:[1St0|‘nel‘s ()l‘ tllf‘
d IIlC‘pC I MECHANICAL
; Eoiie="" CONTRACTOR
counciL or GENTRAL INOIANA pange from ZOV-
ernments to private property owners . . .
financiers to building promoters .
architects to consumers. Wherever you
see a new structure rising in the midst of
urban renewal or suburban expansion . . .
or a factory building or shopping center
being expanded or remodeled . . . a
MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR is taking
part in the construction by providing the
heating, air-conditioning, plumbing and
process piping which make up the nerve

center of the structure. ® The responsibility
of the MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR
doesn’t stop with installation, either!
Through in-plant maintenance arrange-
ments, the MECHANICAL CONTRAC-
TOR will assume full responsibility (men,
materials, tools and insurance) for main-
tenance of the systems on a continuing
basis. ® Knowing this, the MECHANICAL
CONTRACTOR maintains the tools, in-
ventory, skilled craftsmen and heavy
equipment necessary to handle any chal-
lenge. This always-ready status is evidence
of his desire to accept the responsibility
he has to the people he serves.

MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR'S PROGRESS COUNCIL OF CENTRAL INDIANA

5365 North Tacoma Indianapolis, Indiana 46220
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IS A
HEATING
SYSTEM?

You betitis! This is a revolutionary
new ELECTRIC climate condition-
ing system called, "“Heat with Light".
It's only one of many advanced con-
cepts offered by modern Electric
heating and cooling to allow archi-
tects and engineers with imagina-
tion greater flexibility in design and
construction.

Costs on equipment, installation
and operation are available on actual
installations in the Indianapolis
area,

FOR FULL INFORMATION CALL

ARCHITECT and ENGINEERING
REPRESENTATIVE

MErose 5-6868—Extension 264
i
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LAFAYETTE SQUARE, 3919 Lafayette Road, Indianapolis, Indiana: Architect — Edward J. DeBartalo and Associates; General Contractor — Edward J. DeBartolo Corporation, Youngstown, Ohiio.
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wry 1S AMERLITE" BLOCK
CHOSEN FOR SO MANY SHOPPING CENTERS?

ECONOMY—AMERLITE Block is a quality block

There are many reasons why AMERLITE
at an economical price. Also, because it is light-

BLOCK is first choice . . . the chief reasons

being—

STRUCTURAL STRENGTH—AMERLITE Block is a
strong, rugged block possessing all the strength
necessary for load bearing walls.

BEAUTY-—AMERLITE Block gives a clean, mod-
ern, pleasing appearance. And each block is
manufactured from completely processed cinder
aggregates assuring uniformity of texture and
size.

weight, it costs less to handle and erect.

PLUS other important factors as . . . excellent
fire-resistance, proven durability, better thermal
insulation and compatibility with other building
materials.

Why don't you specify AMERLITE Block on
your next project and be rewarded with the
finest quality cinder block made? . .. And re-
member IT COSTS NO MORE!

PARTIAL LIST OF SHOPPING CENTERS USING AMERLITE BLOCK...

Linwood Square
Speedway Shopping Center, Inc.
Zayre Center

Glendale Shopping and Community Center
Greenwood Center
Lawrence Shopping Center

Devington Shopping Center, Inc.
Eagledale Plaza
Eastgate Shopping Center

OMPANY INC.
RD. 37 & HAGUE ROAD

/) r
MERICAN | D

2200 N. MONTCALM ST.

LOCK

PHONE 632-1432 « INDIANAPOLIS




ARCHITECTS and URBAN ENVIRONMENT

“Architects and Urban Environment,” the
1968 ISA Annual Convention, opens its three-
day stand at Stouffers’ Indianapolis Inn Thurs-
day, October 24, with a double-barrel presenta-
tion aimed at the principals of architectural
firms. The limited-attendance seminar will fea-
ture, first, a study on the costs of architectural
service presented by Mr. W. R, Evans, vice-
president of Case & Company, consultants to the
ATA and several state societies. Following this
will be a report and recommendation on estab-
lishing co-operative computer facilities in Indi-
ana, presented by Professor C. Herb Wheeler
ATA, professor at Penn State University, author
of “Emergency Techniques,” and consultant to
the Indiana Architectural Services Committee.

After lunch Thursday, discussions will turn
to “The Schoolhouse in the City,” the first of
three theme sessions, with an address by Mr.
Johathan King of the Educational Facilities Lab-
oratory. Supporting Mr. King as panelists will
be Dr. James MacConnell of Stamford Univer-
sity, Dr, Harold Boles of Western Michigan Uni-
versity, Chicago Architect Larry Perkins AIA,
and Mr. Mark W. Gray, member and former
president of the Indianapolis School Board.

While the men are so engaged, the ladies
will enjoy lunch and a special style show at Hill-
crest Country Club.

Thursday evening, entertainment takes over
with dinner and “Under the YumYum Tree” at
the Black Curtain Dinner-Theater.

Back to business Friday morning, the con-
vention will hear transportation authority Ted
Aschman of Barton-Aschman Associates, Chi-
cago and Washington, D. C., discuss ‘“Mass
Transportation and Community Values.” Panel-
ists appearing with Mr. Aschman will include
Dr. Joseph M. Heikoff, director of the Univer-
sity of Illinois’ Bureau of Community Planning,
Mr. Don Spaid and Dr. Frank P. Lloyd, both
members of the Marion County Metropolitan
Plan Commission.

The ladies, meanwhile, will enjoy a bus ex-
cursion to Nashville and magnificent Brown
County.

Noon Friday has been reserved for individual
Chapter lunches and meetings, with the after-
noon for exhibit viewing, golf, and relaxation.
The Stackhouse Reception and dinner Friday
night will be followed by the popular Casino
Night.

On Saturday morning, the Honorable Birch
Bayh, U. S. Senator from Indiana, will lead a dis-

r e

WE
CONTROL

with

AIRTEX MODULAR
RADIANT ACOUSTICAL
PANELS

* Unlimited Design Possibilities

* Most Efficient Use of the Energy
Source

* Accessibility

* The Ultimate in Human
Comfort Conditioning

CONTRACTORS

ANNING-JOHNSON

s INC.

1272 Maxwell Ave.
Evanaville, Ind.

1720 Alvord Strest
Indianapolis 2, Ind.

923-5451 423-44569
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1968 Convention, Indiana Society of Architects

E Stouffer’s Inn, Indianapolis, October 24-26

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 23

FRIDAY, OCTOBER 25

8:00 P.M. Pre-Convention Reception
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 24

8:30 A.M. Registration

9:30 A.M. Opening Convention Session
“Cost of Architectural Service”: W. R.
Evans, Case & Co.

11:00 A.M. “Architectural Automation in Indiana”:
C. Herb Wheeler

12:30 P.M. Lunch

2:00 P.M. “The Schoolhouse in the City”: Jonathan
King; James MacConnell, Harold Boles,
Larry Perkins, Mark Gray

6:00 P.M. Cocktails and Dinner

8:00 P.M. “Under the Yum-Yum Tree”

“Mass Transportation and Community Values”:

Ted Aschman; Don Spaid, Frank Lloyd,

Afternoon Open, Exhibit Viewing, Golf

VanCamp Room

Exhibit Area
Ballroom

VanCamp Room
Ballroom

Black Curtain
Black Curtain

Jallroom

VanCamp Room

VanCamp Room
Ballroom

9:30 A M.

Joseph M. Heikoff
12:30 P.M. Chapter Lunches
6:00 P.M Stackhouse Reception
7:00 P.M Dinner
8:30 P.M Casino Night

SATURDAY, OCTOBER 26

Sen. Birch Bayh;

VanCamp Room

Ballroom

Mayor Richard Lugar, Joseph Maloney,

VanCamp Room

Jules Gregory, ATA Vice-President, Speaker

9:30 A.M. “Model Cities Program”:
Patrick Horsbrugh

12:30 P.M. Lunch

2:00 P.M ISA Business Session

4:30 P.M Oldfields Tour

5:30 P.M Hugh J. Baker Reception

7:00 PM Annual Banquet

Ballroom
Oldfields
Oldfields
Ballroom

ISA Triennial Honor Award Presentations,

Dancing

cussion on the “Model Cities Program,” with as-
sistance from the Honorable Richard Lugar,
Mayor of the City of Indianapolis; Dr. Joseph
Maloney, director of the Urban Studies Center
at the University of Louisville, and Professor
Patrick Horsbrugh, director of Notre Dame’s
new Graduate School of Environics.

ATA Vice-President Jules Gregory will ad-
dress the Saturday luncheon, which will be fol-
lowed by the annual ISA business session.

Wrapping up the convention Saturday night

8/ september 68 /i a

will be the Hugh J. Baker reception at Oldfields
(new home of the John Herron Art Museum) and
the annual banquet at Stouffers. Announcement
of the winners in the 1968 Triennial Honor
Awards program and dancing will provide the
evenings’ entertainment.

As a powerful inducement for architeets to
attend this convention, the first in Indianapolis
in several years, the ISA Board has directed that
participants will pay no registration fee, but will
pay only for the meals and entertainment.




be more accurately called “Hoosier Hys-
teria in the Nineteenth Century.” Of the
ninety-two counties in Indiana, all built at least
two, and several as many as five, courthouses in
a span of less than ninety years.

mHE TITLE OF THIS presentation might

Thus, keen competition developed between
towns in the hope that each would be selected
as the county seat, since it was felt that being
selected would insure rapid growth and pros-
perity. (This was, however, not always the case.)

The courthouse quickly became the symbol
of the county: Politically, socially, and archi-
tecturally. Distances and directions in the county
were measured or given with the courthouse as
the bench mark or reference point., Rivalry be-
tween counties was often equally spirited.

This competition between cities can be read-
ily traced to the rivalry between cities in the late
Gothic and Renaissance periods. Numerous com-
parisons can be made between:

14th and 15th Centuries vs. 19th Century

Secularism (Humanism)

New towns

Increased trade and new trade routes
(materialism)

Greater security

Increased wealth

Architectural comparisons between the pe-
riods are equally meaningful:

14th and 15th Centuries vs. 19th Century

City Halls Courthouses

Both became tangible architectural symbols

of the skills and aspirations of the historic pe-
riods for which they were designed.

Sometimes they defined a space:

Siena (Plate 1) Bluffton (Plate 2)
Palazzo Publico Wells County
1297-1310 Courthouse
1888-1890

Sometimes they were defined by a space:

Muncie (Plate 42) La Porte
Delaware County La Porte County

Courthouse Courthouse,
1885-1887 1892

19th Century
Indiana
Courthouses

1. Siena, Palazze Publice, 1297-1310, general view.

2. Bluffton, Wells County Courthouse,
Son, view from northwest,

1888-1890, George W. Bunting &
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Were an important silhouette:

Siena (Plate 3) Decatur (Plate 4)
Palazzo Publico Adams County
1297-1310 Courthouse
1872

Or offered an excellent view of the city:
Venice Muncie

In the Nineteenth Century, architecture be-
came a Battle of Styles: Classical, Romanesque,
Gothie, Renaissance, and Eclecticism (Renais-
sance, Second Empire, Victorian elements).

In the Midwest, the use of other systems
Was necessary.

Wayne County was organized in 1810 and
Salisbury, which is no longer marked on maps of
Indiana, was selected as the county seat. It
was the first town laid out in the county, which
was at the time completely forested. Salisbury
was sited south of U.S. 40 about midway be-
tween Centerville and Richmond,! and the First
Courthouse in Wayne County was built in 1811
(Plate 5) at Salisbury. The first trial was held
within the partially raised building on October
28, 1811.

The two-story building, 31 feet long and 25
feet wide, was heated by a large fireplace at the
first floor. The building was constructed of
squared logs, hand-hewn. Spaces, if any, be-
tween timbers were chinked with a clay mortar.
Corner joints were half dove-tailed and windows
were shuttered. The same system of construc-
tion had been used during the Seventeenth and
KEighteenth Centuries by English colonists to
build blockhouses and jails. It proved to be an
excellent system but one that required consid-
erable skill and numerous tools. This may well
account for the fact that the First Wayne County
Courthouse is still standing today. William Com-
mons, who came to the county in 1810, was the
builder.

Later a second courthouse of brick con-
struction was built at Salisbury ; however, an ac-
curate deseription and exact date have not yet
been uncovered. In 1816 the Indiana legislature
passed an act stating that after Auwgust 1, 1817,
all official business was to be transacted in Cen-
terville. After bitter strife between the citizens
of the two communities, the seat of county gov-
ernment was transferred to Centerville.

The town of Salisbury found little use for
two vacant courthouses, and the hand-hewn log
structure was auctioned off to the highest bidder.
The owner dismantled the structure and moved
the elements to Richmond where it was reas-
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. Siena, Palarzo Publico, 1297-1310, silhouette.
. Decatur, Adams County Courthouse, 1872, J. C. Johnson, east elevation.
. Centerville (orig. site, Salisbury), First Wayne County Courthouse, 1811,

Williom Commons, builder, general view from southeast.

. Richmond, Fourth Wayne County Courthouse, 1873, George Hoover, pho-

tograph from the Indiana Histerical Seciety Library.

. Vernon, Jennings County Courthouse, 1859, Isaac Hodgson, view from

northwest.

. Richmond, Fifth Wayne County Courthouse, 1889-1892, James MclLaughlin,

view of west elevation.

. Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Allegheny County Courthouse, 1884-1887, H. H.

Richardson, view from southwest.

. Hartford City, Blackford County Courthouse, 1893-1894, LaBelle & French

view of south elevation.




. Pittsburgh, Allegheny County Courthouse, 1884-1887, H. H. Richardson,

view of tower from west.

. Hartford City, Blackford County Coruthouse, 1893-1894, La Belle & French,

view of east elevalion.

. Knox, Starke County Courthouse, 1897, Wing & Moahurin, east elevation.
. Greenfield, Hancock County Courthouse, 1896, Wing & Mahurin, view

from northwest.

. Rochester, Fulton County Courthouse, 1895, A. W. Rush & Son, view from

southwest

. Rochester, Fulton County Courthouse, 1895, A, W. Rush & Son, main

entrance

. Greensburg, Decatur County Courthouse, 1854-1860, Edwin May, view

from southwest

. Greensburg, Decatur County Courthouse, 1854-1860, Edwin May.

sembled to function as a residence. Apparently
no changes were made in the rebuilding of the
original fabric, although later modifications com-
pletely concealed the original structure, but the
gignificance of the courthouse-residence was not
forgotten.

“In 1952, a contractor dismantled the court-
house-residence in Richmond. Interested citizens
came forward to save the original log building
and it was again purchased at auction. Since the
town of Salisbury had long since disappeared,
the owners decided to reconstruct it at Center-
ville, the county’s second seat of justice. The
venerable structure now stands on school prop-
erty in Centerville south of the National Road.”2

To my knowledge it is the oldest extant
courthouse in Indiana and certainly one of the
oldest, if not the oldest, in the Northwest Terri-
tory. The number of counties in Indiana that
built log or hand-hewn courthouses are too num-
erous to mention, and all have long since dis-
appeared. From the verbal descriptions and
drawings that remain, the Wayne County ex-
ample was one of the largest to employ this sys-
tem of construction and certainly one of the
most sturdy. It is more than a symbol of the
frontier spirit. Tt is expressive of an indigenous
concept of construction and design with em-
phasis on organic simplicity.

The Third Wayne County Courthouse, 1818,
the first in Centerville, was built by William
Commons, the builder of the first courthouse at
Salisbury, and although it was a modest struc-
ture, it was the model for the Second Delaware
County Courthouse,

“On the third day of June, 1872, a petition
was drawn up and signed by 4,987 persons and
presented to the Board of Commissioners of
Wayne County, asking for the removal of the
county seat from Centerville to Richmond.”’3 Only
after bitter debate and strife was the seat of
justice moved to Richmond on August 15, 1873.

The Fourth Wayne County Courthouse, com-
pleted August 4, 1873, was the first to be built
in Richmond (Plate 6). An expression of the
Italianate Style, it was a simple, well-propor-
tioned brick structure with square-headed win-
dows and doors spanned by flat stone arches.
Paired brackets defined the continuous eave of a
low-pitched, hipped roof which was terminated
by an open cupola. The Italianate Style was
widely exploited in America from ea. 1850
through the 1870s for both residential and public
buildings. Indiana has a large number of well-
preserved residences and several existing court-
houses built in the Italianate Style. The Jennings
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County Courthouse at Vernon, 1859 (Plate 7),
and the Morgan County Courthouse at Martins-
ville, 1857, both by Isaac Hodgson,® are quite
similar in design. Both are more expressive of
the picturesque asymmetrical compositions that
became the hallmark of the style than the sym-
metrical, less ostentatious Wayne County ex-
ample.

Architects’ and builders’ handbooks played a
most important role in the dissemination of a de-
sign vocabulary based upon the Late Gothic and
Early Renaissance styles of Italy — a vocabulary
that was often referred to by Europeans as an
American vernacular or indigenous expression of
architecture. The architect of the Fourth Wayne
County Courthouse, the first in Richmond, was
George Hoover; the builder, Thomas W. Roberts.
The cost of the construction was $22,700.5 The
structure was demolished some time after the
completion of the present courthouse.

The present or Fifth Wayne County Court-
house, the second at Richmond, 1889-1892, by
James W. McLaughlin, architect (Plate 8), is an
expression of the Richardsonian Romanesque.

Henry Hobson Richardson (1838-1886) has
been rightfully referred to as the father of mod-
ern architecture in the United States. Indeed,
it would be all but impossible to name a contem-
porary of his who had an equal impact on the
development of modern architecture. He was
the initial link on the chain: Richardson, Louis
Sullivan, and Frank L. Wright.

Richardson’s physique was gargantuan; he
had architecture in his bones. He was robust,
dynamie, virile, and possessed a titanic imagina-
tion. These qualities were ever present in his
architecture.®

As an architect, Richardson placed consid-
erable emphasis on a wall bearing structural
system (Plate 9). Thus, the walls were laid up
of massive rough-faced masonry units, usually
of a local stone which tended to have a rich
polychrome or succulent quality.

His design sources were manifold. He ex-
ploited low springing arches and grouped open-
ings that expressed interior spatial functions;
this was in sharp contrast to the staccato win-
dow fenestration of classically inspired academic
solutions used by most of his contemporaries. The
low springing arches were previously found in
Syrian examples of the Fifth and Sixth Centuries.

Silhouettes of towers and details were sim-
ilar to French and Spanish Romanesque solutions
of the Eleventh and Twelfth Centuries.

Richardson was an eclectic, but in a most
positive way. He used the history of architecture
to formulate a personal and extremely imagina-
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20.
n.

22.
23.
. Vevay, Switzerland County Courthouse, ca. 1850, dome.
25.
26.

. Noblesville, Hamilton County Courthouse, 1878, Edwin May, view from
southwest

Rising Sun, Ohio County Courthouse, 1845.

Madison, Jefferson County Courthouse, ca. 1848, David Dubach, facade;
west elevation.

Vevay, Switzerland County Courtouse, ca. 1850, view: facade.
Madison, Jefferson County Courthouse, ca. 1848, David Dubach, dome.

Paoli, Orange County Courthouse, 1847-1850, facade: south elevation.
South Bend, St. Joseph County Courthouse, 1854, John Mills VanOsdel,
view: facade.




27.

28.
29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Plymouth, Marshall County Courthouse, 1870, Gurdon P. Randall, view
from southwest.

Boston, State House, 1795-1808, Charles Bulfinch, view: facade.
Philadelphia, Girard College, 1833-1837, Thomas U. Walter, view of
south elevation.

Bluffton, Wells County Courthouse, 1889-1890, George W. Bunting & Son,
interior; courtroom.

Liberty, Union County Courthouse, 1890, George W. Bunting & Son,
view from northwest.

Liberty, Union County Courthouse, 1890, George W. Bunting & Son,
view of west elevation.

Franklin, Johnson County Courthouse, 1881-1882, George W. Bunting,
south elevation.

. Franklin, Johnson County Courthouse, 1881-1882, George W. Bunting.

tive expression that has been termed a ‘“‘true
American Style.”

It was little wonder that his design solutions
made a strong impact on the younger generation
of Nineteenth Century architects. An impres-
sion of similar significance has been experienced
in the Twentieth Century in the influence of
Mies van der Rohe, LeCorbusier, and others.

Numerous comparisons can be vividly seen
between the courthouses of Indiana and their
Richardsonian precedents.

Many of the details of the present Wayne
County Courthouse are similar to, or were in-
spired by, the Albany City Hall, 1880-1882, and
the Allegheny County Courthouse in Pittsburgh,
1884-1887, by H. H. Richardson (Plate 3):

Massive bearing walls of rough-faced
stone terminated vertically by a hipped roof
with a single stone-faced dormer and longi-
tudinally by semicircular tourelles. (Com-
pare Plate 8 and Plate 9.)

Windows of a variety of sizes are
grouped to form functional horizontal bands
along with small punched rectangular open-
ings at the base.

Low springing arches of local rough-
faced stone are used in both solutions.

Let us quickly experience other Hoosier
courthouses that reflect similar design char-
acteristics.

The Blackford County Courthouse at Hart-
f()'rd City, 1893-1894, is a massive Richardsonian
Romanesque expression (Plate 10) sited on an
ample square, the facade being the south eleva-
tion. The tower is asymmetrically superimposed
on an otherwise symmetrical composition.

Again several comparisons can be made be-
tween the Blackford County Courthouse and the
Allegheny County Courthouse:

The towers are similar in silhouette
(compare Plate 10 and Plate 11), and both
exploit blind arcading with slit openings and
tourelles to define the corners. Both ex-
amples have boldly projecting paired towers
running the full height of the massive walls
(compare Plate 12 and Plate 9). These
paired massive semicircular towers became a
hallmark of Indiana County Courthouses.

The Blackford County Courthouse has been
well maintained, functions quite well today, and
continues to be the architectural symbol of the
county.

La Belle and French Architects of Marion,
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Indiana, were the designers of the Blackford
County Courthouse building which was completed
in 1894,

Bert I.. French (1868-1940) was born in Ur-
bana, Ohio, and served his architectural appren-
ticeship in the office of Elah, Terrel and Com-
pany in Springfield, Ohio, from 1887 to 1889. In
1891 a partnership was established with Arthur
La Belle (1885-7)

Mr. La Belle was born in Plattsburg, New
York, and journeyed to Hutchinson, Kansas, in
1884, where he stayed for two years. He ar-
rived in Marion ca. 1888. Arthur La Belle is an
enigma similar to the majority of architects who
practiced in Indiana during the Nineteenth Cen-
tury ; information on these individuals remains
tantalizingly scanty.

The partnership of La Belle and French was
very productive. They designed at least two ad-
ditional courthouses: The White County Court-
house at Monticello, Indiana (1894), and the
Trumbull County Courthouse at Warren, Ohio.
The firm also designed a large number of schools,
churches, and commercial buildings in Indiana.

The Starke County Courthouse at Knox,
1897 (Plate 13), by the architectural firm of
Wing and Mahurin of Fort Wayne is sited on a
large square with the facade orientated to the
south. Originally the major commercial activity
of the town defined three sides of the square (W,
S, E), but this activity has largely shifted a block
south of the courthouse square. The courthouse
is basically classical in plan and form; however,
the exterior is again Richardsonian Romanesque.
It is a well-proportioned and finely detailed
structure,

The Hancock County Courthouse at Green-
field, 1896, also by Wing and Mahurin, is an-
other variation of the Richardsonian Romanesque
design theme (Plate 14), although the hie rarchy
or system is less lucid. The massing of the cor-
ner units, their gable and mansarded roof ele-
ments, and the applied dormers are more remi-
niscent of French Renaissance and Gothic solu-
tions than Richardsonian Romanesque.

Even the bold, projecting semicircular tow-
ers flanking the main entrance (north elevation)
have a Renaissance character due to the strong
horizontal banding and rectangular headed open-
ings. Note the contrast between the Renaissance

inspired arch and strong course versus the
Gothic tower.

Indeed, the over-all organization and result-
ing silhouette of the Hancock County Courthouse
(Plate 14) are similar to the Fulton County
Courthouse at Rochester, 1895 (Plate 15), by A.
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W. Rush and Son. The Hancock County example
is more monumental due to the elasticized or
elongated and chunky vertical axis. However,
the Fulton County Courthouse is a clearer, more
lucid statement of the Romanesque vocabulary
due to the greater emphasis on rusticated planes
and simple massing versus applied ornamenta-
tion. The incised organic ornament at the main
entrance of the Fulton County example is quite
rich and most finely carved (Plate 16). The lion
is curious. Both examples express considerable
imagination and are without question the most
significant architectural symbols in their
counties.

The Decatur Countv Courthouse at Greens-
burg. 1854-1860 (Plate 17). by Edwin May is one
of the most unique of all the Indiana County
Courthouses and certainly one of the most widelv
known county courthouses in the United States.

The original or first Decatur Countv Court-
house. completed in 1827, was a modest 40 by 40
feet two-story brick building terminated by a
~nola. By 1854 the building nroved inadequate :
it was condemned and torn down to make way
for the present structure.

Fdwin Mav was emvloyed by the Decatur
ountvy Commissioners to desien the wnresent
atrueture. He was then onlv 29 vears old. but
he had already desioned courthouses in Sullivan
and Shelbv Counties. He later designed at least
four additional Honsier Conntv Courthouses and
the present State Capitol Building, althoueh he
died almost a decade prior to its completion.

Fdwin Mav (1824-18R0). George W. Runtine
(1829.1901). and Tsaac Hodgson (1826-?7) were
arcrhitects of the generation of the 1820s. The
trinmvirate had offices in Indianapolis, and all
made a significant contribution to the architec-
fural heritage of Indiana.

Mr. May. born in Boston in 1824, iourneved
ea. 1838 to Madison, Indiana. a city even then
with a large number of finely nroportioned and
well-detailed Georgian, Federal. and Classical
Revival public buildings and residences. Madi-
son was to Indiana in the Nineteenth Century
what Columbus is in the Twentieth Century —
an architectural oasis. Although his stay in
Madison was relatively short, the architecture of
the community made an indelible impression on
Mr. May.

In 1842 Edwin May went to Indianapolis
where he worked as a carpenter and builder for
eight years. Although he had no formal archi-
tectural training, he must have had a keen mind
and considerable knowledge of financing, for he
operated a loan office that might well have as-




. Frankfort, Clinton County Courthouse, 1882, George W. Bunting, west

elevation.

. Anderson, Madison County Courthouse, 1882, George K. Bunting.
. Frankfort, Clinton County Courthouse, 1882, George W. Bunting, detail:

west elevation

. Anderson, Madison County Courthouse, 1882, George W. Bunting.
. LaGrange, LaGrange County Courthouse, 1878-1879, Thomas J. Tolan &

Son, view: west elevation.

. Rockville, Parke County Courthouse, 1879-1880, Thomas J. Tolan & Son,

view from northeast.

. Warsaw, Kosciusko County Courthouse, 1882, Thomas J. Tolan & Son,

view from southwest.

sisted him in remaining financially solvent as an
architect and builder. The operation of a loan
office is a most unique and imaginative enter-
prise for an architect, and I know of no precedent.

Although the present Decatur County Court-
house was started in 1854, it was not completed
until 1860. It is an interesting and curious solu-
tion, asymmetrical in plan and picturesque and
rambling in silhouette, but suggestive of the
Gothic idiom. Conversely, the semicircular
arches are more indicative of Romanesque ex-
pressions, but the Richardsonian idiom was not
prevalent until much later (1870 and after).
Thus, it is possible that Edwin May was familiar
with the then current work of James Renwick
and his solution for the Smithsonian Institution
in Washington (1847-1855).

In 1903 the exterior brickwork was stuccoed
to emulate a more permanent material, stone.

The courthouse has been eulogized on num-
erous occasions for various reasons. While on
a speaking tour in 1908, William Jennings Bryan
stated that Decatur County’s Courthouse was the
finest specimen of Gothic architecture that he
had seen in his travels throughout the world.?

William Allen White, the eminent Kansas
Journalist known as the Sage of Emporia, used
the Decatur County Courthouse as the subject
for one of his editorials (Plate 18). He expressed
curiosity as to the ‘“secret of the grove of trees
on the high tower between stones whereas on the
plains of Kansas one was fortunate to grow a
single tree on the ground.”®s White’s comments
were printed in many papers throughout the
country and he even visited the site several
vears later while on a trip to the East.

The local chamber of commerce refers to the
tree as the “Eighth Wonder of the World.” Some
have accused the chamber of commerce of
“planting” the tree which caused a local wit to
say, “and it’s watered by the springs of the
clock.” Indeed, the fire department has watered
the trees during severe period of drought., It is
uncertain how the tree got to the apex of the
115-foot high tower or when the tree was first
soon ; possibly a bird or even the wind carried a
seed to the tower. Various dates have been
given for the sighting of the first tree, ranging
from ca. 1864 to 1870.

The present tree is the twelfth in the se-
ries of large-tooth aspen which have brought
considerable publicity to the Decatur County
Courthouse, but the trees seem to have clouded
the architectural significance of the building.

The Hamilton County Courthouse at Nobles-
ville, 1878, also by Edwin May (Plate 19), is in
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sharp contrast to the Decatur County example.
It is one of the most lucid expressions of the
Classical French Renaissance mode to have been
constructed in the Midwest during the Nineteenth
Century and is reminiscent of French examples
of the Seventeenth and Eighteenth Centuries in
form, materials, and details. The banded columns
are an expression of the “French Order” devised
and exploited by Philibert de 'Orme in the Six-
teenth Century.

One of the most interesting series of Indiana
courthouses was the classically inspired solu-
tions which began to appear in the southern part
of the state ca. 1845. The Classical Revival was
to have a longer life in the United States than
any other country in the world, with the possible
exception of Russia.

The Greek Revival became an American
architectural ideal because of our romantic asso-
ciation with ancient Greek arts, politics, and cul-
tural perfection. Indeed, the modern Greeks
gained the sympathy of a new nation, the United
States, with their struggle for freedom against
the Turks in the War of 1821-1827.

The style which became a fashion was used
for the design and/or remodeling of all building
types except factories, barns, and privies.

Temple-front wooden porticoes in standard
heights could be purchased from local mills ; how-
ever, some needed additional sections to reach an
already established cornice height, and the re-
sults were not always successful.

Similar fortuitous systems have occurred in
the Twentieth Century:

Duteh doors of aluminum for residences
designed in any style.

Portholes Kits (Buicks) for Chevrolets.

Cadillac tail fins for Chevrolets.

Edward Stone sun screens for the W™
elevation.

Asbestos siding to simulate stone.

One of the earliest and now the oldest Greek
Revival Courthouse in Indiana to be continuously
occupied is the Ohie County Courthouse at Rising
Sun, 1845 (Plate 20). The architect is uncertain.
It was probably inspired by the Greek Revival
portico which was added to the George Wash-
ington Custis House (later Robert E. Lee) at
Arlington, Virginia, ca. 1820-1826 by George Had-
field. The columns were copied from an unfin-
ished Greek Classical Temple where the volutes
had not been cut into the column shafts. It was
archaeologically inaccurate, but the result was a
new expression and one that was to be widely
emulated.

This archaeological inaccuracy is the key to
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the significance of the Greek Revival Period in
America. It was rarely an exact copy of Greek
Classical examples, but rather an imaginative
assimilation of forms for the solution of new
building types. Great emphasis was placed on
developing new structural systems that would re-
sult in fire-resistive construction and hence
greater permanency.

The solutions expressed restraint, simplicity,
and monumentality even if the building was mod-
est in size, such as the courthouse at Rising Sun.

A strong similarity can be seen between the
Jefferson County Courthouse at Madison, eca.
1848 by David Dubach (Plate 21), and the Switz-
erland County Courthouse at near-by Vevay
(Plate 22).

The Jefferson County example was the pre-
cedent. The porticoes of both examples are
similar: High bases with pierced arches sup-
porting four slender colunms. The orders and
the proportions of the pediments are dissimilar.
The Ionic order was employed on the Jefferson
County example and the Corinthian was used on
the Switzerland County solution. The angle of
the raking cornice of the Switzerland County sol-
ution is a more accurate use of the classical
element.

It is possible that the facade of the State
House at Boston (Plate 28), 1795-1808, by
Charles Bulfinch was the precedent for both
solutions.

Other similarities between the Hoosier solu-
tions are quite obvious: Bay system, window
fenestration, and scale. Indeed, the domes are
identical except for minute details in the propor-
tions of the cupolas (Plate 23 and Plate 24).

One of the most finely proportioned and de-
tailed Greek Revival examples in Indiana is the
Orange County Courthouse at Paoli, 1847-1850
(Plate 25). The architect is unknown. It is
grandly sited on a gently sloping square defined
by low commercial facilities at the periphery.

Behind the Greek Doric hexastyle portico,
two open iron stairways rise from the main floor
to the courtroom at the second floor. A similar
stair system is employed to gain access from the
finished grade to the first or main floor. Both
stairways are defined by ornamental cast iron
panels. The Paoli example is a very restrained,
sophisticated, and monumental solution.

Another interesting example in the classical
vocabulary is the St. Joseph County Courthouse
at South Bend, 1854, by John Mills Van Osdel
(1811-1891), the first architect to practice in
Chicago and one of the first to practice in the
Midwest. Fortunately, when a new courthouse
was built in 1897, the old structure was moved to
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Muncie, Delaware County Courthouse,
view from southwest,

Warsaw, Kosciuske County Courthouse,
view of south elevation.

Muncie, Delaware County Courthouse,
view of south elevation.

Warsaw, Kosciusko County Courthouse,
south ([main entrance).

. Muncie, Delaware County Courthouse,

south (main entrance).

Muncie, Delaware County Courthouse,
west stair.

Muncie, Delaware County Courthouse,
dome.

1885-1887, Brentwood 5. Tolan,
1882, Thomaos J. Tolan & Son,
1885-1887, Brentwood §. Talan,
1882, Thomas J. Telan & Son,
1885-1887, Brentwood S. Tolan,
1885-1887, Brentwood S. Tolan,

1885-1887, Brentwood §. Tolan,

a new site and is now used as the headquarters

of the Northern Indiana Historical Society
(Plate 26).
Numerous other Indiana County Court-

houses were built in the Classical Revival Style,
several by the eminent Hoosier architect, John
Elder. However, most, if not all, have been re-
placed by more recent constructions.

The Marshall County Courthouse at Plym-
outh, 1870, by Gurdon P. Randall ( ? -1884),
(Plate 27), is unique in that it is not located in
the business distriet but is sited on an ample
square defined on all sides by a fine group of
residences.

Mr. Randall was born in Vermont and studied
under the eminent eastern architect, Asher Ben-
jamin (1773-1845). Although Benjamin de-
signed numerous buildings, his publications were
of far greater importance since they established
a high standard of design “that had a strong in-
fluence down to the Civil War.”®

Mr. Randall lived in Chicago for thirty-four
vears, where he became a well-known architect.
He designed a number of courthouses, several
located in distant states.

The Marshall County Courthouse is an im-
aginative emulation of the works of James Gibbs
and Robert Adam, two of the most distinguished
architects of the Eighteenth Century. Randall
used a raised portico defined by a series of arches
in a manner not dissimilar to the system em-
ployed by Charles Bulfinch in the design of the
State House in Boston (Plate 28), an example
that Randall had often experienced while residing
in Boston.

George W. Bunting (1829-1901) was with-
out question the most prolific designer of county
courthouses to reside in Indiana. He designed
a minimum of seven Hoosier examples and others
in Kansas (Sedgwick County), Michigan (Wash-
tenaw County), West Virginia (Harrison Coun-
ty), and Tennessee (Montgomery County). The
latter group is a testament to his ability to seek
out commissioners at a great distance from the
geographic area of his architectural practice.

Bunting was born in Pennsylvania, the son
of a sea captain. He later attended Girard Col-
lege, a most extraordinary insgtitution. The will
of Stephen Girard stated the entire moral and
architectural program of the school. It stated
that a 20-0” high wall must be constructed
around the site and that no member of the clergy
be allowed on the grounds. The main building
(Plate 29) was designed by Thomas Ustick Wal-
ter in 1833 and completed four year later at a
cost of $2,000,000, an enormous sum for the time.

i a/september 68/ 19




The structural system is fire resistive, the de-
tailing is impeccable, and it is one of the finest
monuments of the Greek Revival Style to have
been built in the Western world.

As a youth Bunting was also apprenticed to
the shipbuilder’s trade. His exposure to both
architectural excellence and shipbuilding did
much to prepare him for a career in architecture.
He journeyed south and served as a colonel in
the First Mississippi Cavalry during the Civil
War. He then spent five years in Bloomington,
1llinois, where he was engaged in the practice of
architecture, prior to establishing an office in
Indianapolis.

His son, George W. (the younger), later
joined him in the practice of architecture and the
firm of George W. Bunting and Son was estab-
lished ca. 1886. At least two examples by George
W. Bunting and Son were executed in the Rich-
ardsonian idiom. Both are virile and somewhat
brutalistic.

The Wells County Courthouse at Bluffton,
1889 (Plate 2), is a brute of a building, with a
massive outline and an asymmetrical cantilevered
tower that has a polychromed checkerboard band
of stone defining the clock faces, a device often
used by Richardson. 7The rear and side eleva-
tions are massive and well scaled. The court-
room is a fine space and has required only minor
modifications over the years (Plate 30).

The Union County Courthouse at Liberty
was built a year later, 1890, and although the
facade is more symmetrical than the Bluffton
example (Plate 31), the side elevations are bolder
in scale and more brutal (Plate 32). The walls
are expressed as a skeleton of stone more open
in form than the Bluffton solution with great
emphasis on the wall plane juxtaposed to the re-
cessed plane of the windcws. The result is a
bold three-dimensional expression.

In sharp contrast to the Richardsonian solu-
tions that we have just experienced, George W.
Bunting designed several examples in the Eclectic
mode that recalled Renaissance, Mannerism, Ba-
roque, and the then current Second Empire Style.

The Johnson County Courthouse at Frank-
lin, 1881-1882 (Plate 33), largely of red brick, is
vigorously striped with contrasting white lime-
stone. Other details — dentil blocks, columns,
ete. — are picked out in the same light color.
Numerous manneristic elements are employed in
the solution (Plate 34).

The Clinton County Courthouse at Frank-
fort (Plate 35) and the Madison County Court-
house at Anderson (Plate 36), are more than
similar. Both were designed by the same archi-
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tect, George W. Bunting, and were under con-
struction in the same year, 1882,

The only major difference is in the use of
materials, stone at Frankfort and red brick with
stone trim at Anderson, and that the broad flight
of steps is absent in the Frankfort example
(Plate 37 and Plate 38). A further similarity
can be seen between the window details of the
Franklin County and the Madison County ex-
amples. Indeed, it is somewhat unique that an
architect would use the same set of plans in the
same year for two courthouses of identical scale
less than seventy miles apart.

The works of two additional architects are
of more than passing interest.

Thomas J. Tolan (1831-1883), was from
Carrolton, Ohio, and designed numerous build-
ings in the northwestern part of Ohio. In 1874,
he moved with his family to Fort Wayne. With
his son, he established the firm of Thomas J.
Tolan & Son, Architects, and they specialized in
the design of courthouses and jails. At the time
of his death in 1883, the elder Tolan was the
architect and building supervisor of the Hamil-
ton County Courthouse at Chattanooga, Tenn.

His son, Brentwood S. Tolan (1855-1923),
came from Delphos, Ohio. Upon the death of his
father (1883), the name of the firm was changed
to B. S. Tolan, Architect.

The LaGrange County Courthouse at La-
Grange, 1878-1879 (Plate 39), was designed by
Thomas J. Tolan; of that we can be almost cer-
tain. The building is nobly sited on a forested
square with a hitching rail running almost the
entire length of the west side of the site for the
even now familiar Amish horse-drawn carriages.
The courthouse is symmetrical in plan and form
with corner pavilions capped by mansarded roofs.
A domed unit rises from the center of the com-
position. The town has changed only slightly
over the years; hence, the courthouse dominates
the city now as it did almost ninety years ago.

The Parke County Courthouse at Rockville,
1879-1880 (Plate 40), by T. J. Tolan & Son, laid
the foundation for the design of both the Kos-
siusko and Delaware County courthouses. Sim-
iliaries can be seen in all three solutions.

The Kosciusko County Courthouse at War-
saw (Plate 41), 1882, by Thomas J. Tolan and
the Delaware County Courthouse at Muncie
(Plate 42), 1885-1887, by Brentwood S. Tolan
are similar in outline, form, and detail. It is
quite probable that the younger Tolan designed
both examples, although thus far this has been
impossible to prove. In both examples a central
cross axis is expressed as a massive projecting




frontispiece which defines the main entrance.
The orientation is the same in both solutions.

Through a closer inspection it is obvious
that dissimilarities can be experienced (Plate 43
and Plate 44). The Delaware County Courthouse
was elasticized vertically; thus, the main en-
trance (on the south elevation) was at grade
level versus the broad flight of stairs used to
gain access to the main floor at the Kosciusko
County example. Thus, the higher base in the
Delaware County Courthouse resulted in a more
monumental solution and provided an additional
floor of office space above the finished grade
level compared to the sunken or basement se-
quence of spaces in the earlier Kosciusko County
Courthouse.

The frontispiece of the Kosciusko County
Courthouse is an emulation of the frontispiece
of the Chateau Maison, nr. Paris, 1642-1646, by
Francois Mansart. A similarity also is evident
in the upper area of the frontispiece of both In-
diana examples and the French solution.

Indeed, the upper mansarded element of the
Delaware County Courthouse is reminiscent of
the south front of the State War and Navy Build-
ing (Executive Offices) often referred to as
Grant’s Pile in Washington, D. C., 1871-1875, by
Alfred Mullett, one of the most significant ex-
amples of the Second Empire Style in America.

The entrance of the Delaware County Court-
house was of greater girth, it is more positive,
it states that this is the main entrance,

The window treatment in both Indiana ex-
amples is more than similar. In both examples
the domes are similar in that they are both un-
derscaled for their massive blocky bases. The
dome of the Delaware County Courthouse is more
plastie, is more finely detailed and less stilted.

Numerous other comparisons could be made
between these Indiana examples, and there can
be little doubt that the Kosciusko solution was
the pilot study for the later and now no longer
extant Delaware County solution,

Until its demolition in December of 1966,
one of the most delightful ways to experience
the Delaware County Courthouse was to walk
north through the alley (Plate 44), a tight, nar-
row space, toward the south or main elevation.
This same method of approach can be used in ex-
periencing many of the Indiana courthouses. The
element of surprise is dramatized, since only a
narrow vertical segment of the structure can be
experienced until one reaches the courthouse
square, Then and only then can the entire struec-
ture be experienced. It is a space sequence sys-
tem that has been often exploited in the history

of architecture and one that even now has great
importance.

The Delaware County Courthouse was finely
detailed, and a monument of more than local sig-
nificance. Indeed, it is difficult to experience an
equally well-detailed and monumental public
building in this part of the state. The views or
vistas from the dome revealed the grain of the
city and offered the finest panorama of the im-
mediate area.

Fortunately, we have the predecessor of the
Delaware County Courthouse. The example in
Warsaw has been well preserved and continues
to function quite well.

Indiana still has one of the finest assem-
blages of Nineteenth Century courthouses in the
Midwest, and they vividly express a variety of
architectural concepts. They express the archi-
tectural skills and aspirations of America in the
Nineteenth Century. Unfortunately, several ex-
amples have very recently been demolished, and
an ever-greater number will erumble under the
repeated blows of the wrecker’s ball in the fu-
ture. Indeed, it would be fortuitous to suggest
that all of these examples should be preserved
and restored. One can only recommend that a
more careful analysis of the Nineteenth Century
courthouses must be made if we are to retain
one of the most significant phases of our heri-
tage. They are tangible and can continue to af-
ford us a rich architectural stimulus and ex-
perience for many decades.

1. Cf. P. Hedges, Centerville High School History Club
(Sheet).

2. Cf. Indiana Historical Society Bulletin, August, 1961.
3, Illustrated Atlas of Indiana, 1876, p. 295.

4. Hodgson also designed the Henry County Courthouse at
New Castle, 1866; the Bartholomew County Courthouse
at Columbus, 1871; and the Marion County Courthouse,
Indianapolis, 1809-1876, demolished in 1960.

5. Illustrated Atlas of Indiana, 1876, p. 295.
6. Cf. Ames Gate Lodge, North Easton, Mass., 1880-1881.

7. Greensburg Daily News, Thursday, August 18, 1966, page
1, section 3.

8. Greensburg Daily News, Thursday, August 18, 1966, page
1, section 4.

9. Talbot Hamlin, “Greek Revival Architecture in America,”
Dover Publications Inc., N.Y., 1964 reprint, p. 95.
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JOHN C. PARRISH

Indianapolis Architect John C. Parrish AIA,
died August 13 in the Grissom Air Force Base
Hospital near Peru, after suffering a stroke
while on a trip to Rochester.

A charter member of the Indianapolis Arch-
itectural Club in 1913, Mr. Parrish has been a
Corporate Member of the Indianapolis Chapter
ATA since 1954. He was 76 years old.

Mr. Parrish started in architecture as an
apprentice draftsman with Vonnegut & Bohn,
Indianapolis, in 1910, was with George, Mac-
Lucas & Fitton from 1914 to 1916, and with
Frank B. Hunter from 1916 to 1920 prior to
opening his own practice in 1920. He served in
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers from 1942
to 1952, and was the Architect for Military Air
Transport Service, U.S. Air Force, Andrews Air
Force Base, until 1960. His architectural proj-
ects included John Strange Elementary School,
Calvin Prather Masonic Lodge, Stout Field Ad-
ministration Building and hangar, and he was
consulting architect for Culver Military Academy.

93 HONOR AWARD ENTRIES

A record ninety-three entries were received
for judging in this year’s Triennial Honor
Awards competition, twice as many as ever re-
ceived previously.

The distinguished jury was composed of
Jan Rowan, editor of PROGRESSIVE ARCHI-
TECTURE magazine, New Canaan Architect
John M. Johansen and Romaldo Giurgola, chair-
man of Columbia University’s School of Archi-
tecture. Fifteen entries (also a record) received
awards from the jury, including four Honor
Awards, six Merit Awards and five Citations.
The judging was held in New York on Sept. 6.

The results of the competition will be kept
confidential until announcement of the winners
is made at the annual banquet October 26, con-
cluding the ISA Annual Convention. Recogni-
tion of the winners will be made then, and certifi-
cates will be presented to the architect, owner
and contractor of each winning entry at cere-
monies in each locale early in December.
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PEOPLE and THINGS

Indianapolis Architect Fran E. Schroeder
ATA, has been named a member of the Nominat-
ing Committee for the national Construction
Specifications’ Institute. Mr. Schroeder is a
charter member of the local CSI Chapter and
served as its first director. . .. Another Indian-
apolis architect, John C. Fleck AIA, currently is
regional director of CSI from this region. Mr.
Fleck also currently is vice-president of the ISA.
. . . Indianapolis Architect Paul Brandt AIA, has
taken a leave of absence from his firm, Brandt
& DeLap, Inc.,, to become department head of
Building Technology at Auburn University's
School of Architecture. . . . Ewing Miller Asso-
ciates of Terre Haute, has moved into its new
offices at 788 South Third Street. The firm oc-
cupies the upper level of the new two-story
building, with the first floor area leased. The
phone number (285-6275) remains the same. . . .
Ball State architectural student Terrence J. Mi-
nor of Muncie has been awarded the first an-
nual housing research grant sponsored by the

Muncie Federal Savings and Loan Association.
The $750.00 grant will be used to travel and
study row housing on the east coast and in Can-
ada this summer. . .. Anatoli Boschenko, a 1965
graduate of the University of Cincinnati’s School
of Architecture recently returned from Vietnam
and presently employed with Henry G. Meier
ATA, Indianapolis, received the Bronze Star for
his service with the 4th Engineer Batallion, 4th
Infantry Division, U.S. Army. Mr. Boschenko
was instrumental in designing protective bunk-
ers which could be prefabricated and transported
by helicopter. . . . Purdue University’s School of
Civil Engineering is sponsoring a two-day edu-
cational conference on high-rise steel building
design November 14-15. Subjects to be dis-
cussed include the co-ordination necessary among
architect, engineer, contractor and fabricator,
roof and flooring systems, fire-proofing, and
stress and stability analysis for vertical and lat-
eral loads on medium-height steel frame build-
ings. Registration fee is $15.00.

A CEILING OUGHT
TO EARN ITS KEEP

The ceiling in the new State Life Building will work
because it is an Armstrong Luminaire imtegrated
ceiling system . . .. Distributed and Installed by the
Most Distinguished Name in Electrical Construc-
tion and Ceiling Systems . . . . Sanborn Electric Co.

A ceiling ought to do more than just look good. The Luminaire ceiling is an inte-
grated system of functionsdelivering light, conditioned air and comfortable sound

levels—each a benefit that maintains an investment in buildings and people.

mstrong

CEILINGS THAT WORK
Distributed and Installed by

SANBORN ELECTRIC CO.

State Life Building

Main Office: Indianapolis, Indiana
Architect
311 NORTH 'LLINOIS STREET Lennox Matthews Sn:nmons & Ford Inc.
INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA 46204 Owner

State Life Insurance Co.

PHONE 317 635-9584
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ANOTHER PRESIDENCY

Former ISA President James M. Turner AIA
has just assumed the third presidency of a major
organization in about as many years, this time
with the Calumet Council, Boy Scouts of Amer-
ica. He first president of the re-
organized Indiana Society of Architects in 1965,
and moved directly from that task to the presi-
dency of the Hammond Chamber of Commerce
in 1966.

More than 22,000 boys from Lake, Porter,
Will and South Cook Counties participate in the
Council’s program, assisted by 8,000 volunteer
leaders. As president, Architect Turner heads
a ninety-man executive board composed of rep-
resentatives of 68 communities involved in the
Council’s area.

Speaking of duties, Mr. Turner
stated: “Scouting in our area is a predominant
factor; about one out of every four boys is in
the scouting movement, and we hope to increase
this to one out of every three by 1572. Scout-
ing involves our boys and young men in a man-
ner that will shape the judgment of our future
society.”
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BUSINESS FURNITURE CORPORATION

101 SOUTH PENNSYLVANIA STREET -«
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this office has no heating expense
all the heat's provided by light!

Several years ago, 1&M Power Engineers observed
a strange situation. While offices, stores, schools
and industrial buildings were installing fluores-

\ system, to move air through luminaires, picking

| up surplus heat and moving it out to warm

‘ the room. In Summer, the same system moves
cent lighting fixtures everywhere, no effort was the heat outdoors, taking an enormous load off

‘ being made to capture and use the heat that air conditioning equipment.

came from these fixtures as a by-product of light. Your own I&M Power Engineer, based at your
nearest |&M office, will be glad to supply all the
Today, heat recovered from fluorescent luminaires information and direct assistance you need to
is a practical, working reality in hundreds of plan and install a Heat-With-Light system to fit
installations in the I&M area. During the times your particular requirements. He'll provide equip-
when modern, well-lighted buildings are occu- ment information and specifications, work with
| pied, Heat-With-Light delivers free comfort heat- your architect and contractor, and offer a wealth
| ing energy at savings of thousands of dollars! ‘ of experience. And there's never a charge or
| A fluorescent fixture uses only about 20% of ‘ obligation! Call him today.
its electricity to produce light. The other 80%
is released in the form of heat. Knowing this, it |
became a simple matter to design a duct-fan

i
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INDIANA & MICHIGAN

ELECTRIC cOMPANY
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Modern masonry is reaching new heights
with loadbearing concrete block

The high rise — Newest concept
in concrete masonry construction.

Concrete block is coming up in the
world — and fast. The Hanalei Hotel is
another recent example of the far—and
high — reaching structural advantages
of innovative concrete block. The load-
bearing walls of scored 8”x87x16"” block
were completed at a rate of one story
per week over a four month period,
enabling the owner to open for the sum-
mer season.

Today concrete block possesses more
comprehensive strength than ever be-
fore, yet still provides more wall area
for less material and labor costs. This,
combined with the wide variety of
shapes, sizes, colors and textures, helps
to elevate the most creative design;
the most demanding loadbearing re-
quirements to new highs. And with
these structural advantages go the
many traditional qualities of block al-
ways held in high regard; complete
fire-safety, extremely high sound iso-
lation (perfect for party walls) and
impressive self-insulation head the list.
Little wonder, conecrete block is the
building material more people are look-
ing up to in high rises of every nature:
hotels, condos and apartment buildings,
college dorms, hospitals and office
buildings,

Concrete Masonry Association, Inc.

2201 EAST 46th STREET

251-1214

INDIANAPOLIS, IND. 46205




